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City of Shoreline 
Solid Waste Collection RFP Addendum #1 

July 23, 2007 
 
Notices: 
 
(1) Follow-up questions raised as a result of this addendum may be submitted to the City 

via fax or e-mail by 12:00 Noon Wednesday July 25, 2007.  Please use the line 
numbers displayed on this addendum to key your follow-up questions.  We will 
attempt to answer any follow-up questions on the following Monday. 

 
(2) Please remember to acknowledge receipt of this Addendum on the appropriate place 

on your Form 5, Certification. 
 
Responses to Proponent Written Questions: 
 

Q1: Is the City willing to provide an opportunity for proponents to conduct independent 
weight studies of residential customers?  The study would involve random sampling of 
residential accounts on their collection day.  We would simply collect the material and 
transport it to same to the same disposal and processing systems that are being used 
today.  We would cooperate fully with your current contractor.  

 
If that is not possible, could the City provide copies of residential collection dump tickets 
for a one week period over the course of the next two weeks for residential garbage, 
recyclables and yard debris services.  It is important that the scale ticket indicate how 
many homes are represented by each scale ticket.  It would also be important that the 
scale tickets are for services performed only in Shoreline.  Finally, it would be beneficial 
if proponents knew when and where the service under study will be performed prior to 
the specific collection days.  

 
Is the City willing to provide an opportunity for proponents to collect commercial 
garbage and multifamily garbage and recyclables for a period of two days in the City?   
This would again involve a random sampling of customers and the material would be 
disposed of at the proper sites.  Again, we would cooperate fully with your current 
contractor.  Finally, we would need to know the days customers are serviced so as not 
disrupt the customers’ collection schedules. 

 
If that is not possible, could the City provide copies of all frontloader disposal scale 
tickets for a one week period over the course of the next two weeks?  It would be 
important that each scale ticket identify the total number of container yards that are 
represented by the ticket.  It would also be important proponents are notified as to when 
and where the services under study are being performed and the tickets represent services 
performed only in Shoreline.  
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A1: The current contractor is not willing to allow other parties to perform collection 
services in the City of Shoreline.  The City is in the process of requesting garbage scale 
tickets for a one week period from the current contractor.  The data will be compiled and 
released in a future addenda. 

 
Q2: So that all competitors might have access to the same information and be able to 
provide the City with the most competitive pricing and comprehensive answers to RFP 
requests (e.g. 3.1, F), could the City provide the items listed below?   

Current route maps for all residential services 
Data similar to that found in Appendix B for the first half of 2007. 
An Excel spreadsheet listing each residential, commercial and multifamily 
customer, the customer address and current level of service including 
container/can/cart sizes and frequency of collection. 
Copies of any public education materials that have been used in the City in the 
last twelve months including mailers, customer tags, etc. 
 

A2: We do not believe that current residential route maps are necessary for proponents 
to develop their proposals.  Each proponent should use their own productivity estimates 
based on their proposed equipment and staffing, and estimate their route size 
accordingly. 
 
Appendix B data for 2007 is attached. 
 
The City will e-mail spreadsheets listing residential and commercial customers 
(including container sizes) to proponents who specifically these materials via an e-mail 
to the city contact listed in the RFP. 
 
No specific promotional materials have been developed by the City in 2007.  General 
promotional materials (e.g. recycling instructions) used by the current contractor are 
available on their website. 

 
Q3: Can the City provide the RFP as a Word document? 
 
A3: Yes, the RFP will be provided to proponents who specifically this document via an e-
mail to the city contact listed in the RFP. 
 
Q4: The current contract gives the City the option to extend the contract. The City chose 
not to do so. What was the reason for this decision? 
 
A4: The City prefers to competitively procure services in the interests of maximizing 
ratepayer services and minimizing rates. 
 
Q5: RFP Instructions page 2 indicates a total of 14,000 single family residential customer 
and 975 commercial/multifamily customers. Yet the totals on form 2a seem to indicate 
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less than 13,000 residential customers and less than 600 commercial customers. Please 
explain the discrepancy and provide accurate counts. 
 
A5:  The City has approximately 14,000 eligible single family residences, of which 
approximately 13,400 are garbage customers and 8,580 are yard debris customers.  The 
Form 2A customer counts should be used for developing proposals, as they are based on 
a commercial customer list provided by Waste Management.  The 975 is incorrect.  
 
Q6: RFP Instructions page 8 is the pre-proposal conference mandatory? 
 
A6: No. 
 
Q7: RFP Instructions page 10 indicate certain taxes and fees are to be included in unit 
prices. Form 2 (page 26) indicates certain taxes are to be included and certain others are 
to be excluded. Please identify specifically those taxes and fees which are to included in 
the unit proposal prices. 
 
A7: The Form 2a specifically directs that state refuse collection tax, County household 
hazardous waste fees and City utility taxes shall be excluded.  Incidental taxes and fees 
including vehicle licensing, city and state business licenses and fees, fuel taxes, sales 
taxes on equipment and supplies and other similar expense shall be included in the 
proposed rates. 
 
Q8: RFP Instructions page 11 who will be included on the evaluation committee? 
 
A8: The composition of the City’s evaluation committee is still being determined.  It may 
include staff, council members and citizens.  The evaluation committee is not expected to 
include consultants, although SRMG, Inc. will  prepare the spreadsheet evaluating the 
rate components of the proposals for the committee. 
 
Q9: RFP Instructions page 20 under C.5 there is a reference to “city billing 
responsibilities.”  Will the City be doing the billing? 
 
A9: No, the reference to city billing was in error.  The Contractor shall be responsible for 
all customer billing. 
 
Q10: Draft Contract page iv three attachments are identified: Attachment A service area 
map, Attachment B contractor rates, Attachment C rate modification example. There is 
no Attachment A (although Appendix A appears to be a service area map). There is no 
Attachment B contractor rates. There is an Appendix B which appears to be a summary 
of tonnage and service data. Please clarify. 
 
A10: RFP Appendix A  and Appendix B are provided at the end of the RFP .PDF file.  
Appendix A is the City Service area map and will also serve as Attachment A for the 
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eventual city contract, once executed.  Contract Attachment B will be the contractor rates 
used for the contract, based on the response received from the successful proponent.  
 
Q11: Please provide current contractor rates for all service levels. 
 
A11: See attached 
 
Q12: Draft Contract page 19 under 2.2.2.2 there is reference to old recycling bins. Does 
the City currently use a bin system for recycling service? 
 
A12: The second paragraph of Contract section 2.2.2.2 will be deleted.  
 
Q13: Draft Contract page 21 under 2.2.3.4 contractor is to collect “foodscraps” as part of 
EOW yard waste service. Does the City have a health department approval for collection 
of all food waste EOW? 
 
A13: The City has not yet applied for Health approval, and it is not known what range of 
materials will eventually be permitted.  Note that Section 2.2.3.4 does not require the 
contractor to collect materials beyond those permitted by Health. 
 
Q14: Draft Contract page 28 please provide the current size of container and current 
frequency of collection for the City facilities listed. Do all facilities require recycling and 
yard debris service as well as garbage service? 
 
A14: See Attached. 
 
Q15: Draft Contract page 40 what is the litter control fee? 
 
A15: The Contract requires two separate payments to the City: (1) an administrative fee 
of $25,000 per month; and (2) a litter control fee of $5,000 per month, for a total of 
$30,000 per month or $360,000 per year.  The litter control fee will be used as a 
dedicated funding source by the City to pay for arterial litter pick-ups.  Note that the 
second sentence of the first paragraph on page 40 should be revised to read: “The initial 
amount of the litter control fee shall be five thousand dollars ($5,000.00) per month.” 
 
Q16: Do current contract rates include a City administration and/or a litter control fee? If 
so what are those fees? 
 
A16: Yes, the City received a $55,988. administrative fee in 2007. 
 
Q17: Draft Contract page 40 under 3.3.1 please provide an example demonstrating how 
rates would be adjusted using the  three adjustment components. 
 
A17: This is provided in Contract Attachment C.  If there is a question regarding a 
particular index, please be specific.  Note that this is the same methodology (composite 
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index) used in the upcoming Seattle contract.  Also, the dates and rates on Contract 
Attachment C will be adjusted to reflect the final contract prior to execution. 
 
Q18: Draft Contract page 40 under 3.3.1 rates are to be adjusted annually beginning 
March 2010. However, contractor is to submit a Rate Adjustment Statement calculating 
the rates for the next year (emphasis added) starting December 15, 2008. This statement 
would seem to imply that the first increase would be in March 2009. Please clarify. 
 
A18: The first rate adjustment will occur March 1, 2009, not 2010.  The contract 
language will be changed in that section and on the rate adjustment attachment. 
 
Q19: Form 2b page 3 asks for a rate for “multifamily recycling surcharge.” Yet the RFP 
Instructions and the Draft Contract seem to indicate that multifamily recycling is to be 
included in the garbage collection rates and not charged separately. Please explain. 
 
A19: The “surcharge” is the amount added to the commercial base rates for multifamily 
customers to fund multifamily recycling services.  The “surcharge” amount will not be 
separately identified on customer bills.  Once the contract is finalized, the Form 2a might 
be changed to simply list separate multifamily rates for all detachable and drop-box 
container sizes.  The “surcharge” approach is used to simplify and shorten the Form 2A. 

 
Q20: The current contractor’s website indicates that the rates listed were effective May 
2006. The current contract specifies an annual rate adjustment each January. Was there a 
May 2006 increase as well? Did the contractor not receive a January 2007 rate 
adjustment? 
 
A20: There was not a May 2006 increase. The rates on WM’s website are outdated.  The 
correct rates are attached to this Addendum. 
 
Q21: RFP Instructions under 1.2 it states that yard waste is currently collected every 
other week (EOW) March through November and monthly December through February. 
However, the current contractor’s website indicates that yard waste is collected EOW 
March through October and monthly November through February. Please clarify. 
 
A21: The schedule under the current contract is EoW collection March-November and 
monthly collection December-February. 

 
Q22: Could the City provide a copy of the current contract and the current collection 
rates? 
 
A22: The City’s current contract with Waste Management will be posted as an 
attachment to this Addendum on the City’s website.  Current collection rates are 
attached. 
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Q23: Does the current contract require that trucks servicing the City only service City 
customers on a given day?  If not, what is the mathematical methodology used by your 
present contractor to track tons that are collected from different jurisdictions (including 
Shoreline) by the same truck? Can we assume that trucks servicing just Shoreline have 
their specific tons assigned to the City and are being reported in Appendix B? 
 
A23: Yes, the current contractor reports that their routes do not cross jurisdictional 
boundaries and that the reported tons are from Shoreline only. 
 
Q24: Can the City please clarify the date on which the first annual collection adjustment 
will occur?  Paragraph four (4) of Section 3.3.1 of the draft contract (page 40), states 
initially that “Rates shall be adjusted annually, beginning on March 1, 2010.”    The next 
sentence states that “The Contractor shall submit to the City for review and approval a 
Rate Adjustment Statement, calculating the new rates for the next year, on or before 
December 15th of each year, starting December 15, 2008.”   These two sentences, to our 
reading, seem to contradict one another, since a Rate Adjustment Statement submitted on 
or before December 15, 2008 would suggest that a rate adjustment would take place on 
March 1, 2009. 
   
A24: The first rate adjustment will occur March 1, 2009, not 2010.  The contract 
language will be changed in that section and on the rate adjustment attachment. 
 
Q25: Can the City supply the number of loads for each type of material hauled during the 
last two City-sponsored special events discussed in Section 2.2.12? 
 
A25: At the 2006 Fall Recycling Event, five (5) loads of yard and woody debris were 
hauled, as well as seven (7) loads of bulky garbage.  At the 2007 Spring Recycling Event, 
eleven (11) loads of yard and woody debris, and eight (8) loads of garbage were hauled. 
 
Q26: We recognize the fact that the City does not have much data regarding multifamily 
customers using current recycling services (per page 27 of the RFP).  Could the City’s 
present contractor at least provide the number of multifamily recycling carts and 
containers (by size) that are serviced each week (by size and frequency of collection)? 
 
A26: A multifamily recycling customer list has been provided by the current contractor 
and will be provided to proponents who specifically request this list via an e-mail to the 
city contact listed in the RFP. 
 
Q27: In Section 2.1.14.3 the contract requires containers to be “painted a color consistent 
with the program it is use for”.  In Section 2.1.14.6, the color for yard waste containers is 
identified as green and garbage containers are grey or black.  Would contractors be 
required carry this same color scheme to commercial and multifamily garbage containers 
which are now specified to be green (same color as yard waste)?   It is also our 
assumption that commercial and multifamily recycling carts and containers will need to 
be blue, is this correct? 
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A27: There is some flexibility regarding garbage container colors and those can be 
negotiated.  If a proponent would prefer to use a different color than specified in the 
contract, that color should be specified in the contractor’s proposal in the modification 
section.  All commercial and residential recycling containers shall be blue. 
 
Q28: The RFP specifically requires that a magnet be provided to customers with 
instructions regarding the various programs.  May contractors propose other ideas for the 
instructional materials since many appliances will not work with magnetic materials and 
some customers do not want magnets on their appliances?  
 
A28: Yes, other ideas may be proposed. 

 
Q29: Weighting 80% of the selection on price is uncharacteristic for this market and 
appears incongruous with the high value placed on service elsewhere in the RFP and 
contract document. 
 
A29: The service standards are clearly specified in the contract and proponents are 
expected to propose rates based on meeting those standards.  The 80% weight on rates 
still allow 20% of the score to be awarded on the proposed differences in service quality, 
references, program design and other proposal elements.  That 20% can and has resulted 
in contracts being awarded to proponents other than those with the lowest price 
proposal. 
 
Q30: For example, a company that passes the general qualification criteria, yet has poor 
references, no metrics for tracking customer service and no evidence of a positive 
environmental track record could become the City’s new service provider based solely on 
price.  Several local jurisdictions have suffered through contracts with low-priced service 
providers over the years.  Has the City anticipated the cost of adding staff to compensate 
for any support that might become necessary as a result of the selection of a low cost 
service provider? 
 
A30: The contract will not be awarded “solely on price.”  The evaluation criteria 
included in the RFP is provided as guidance to the proponents and the evaluation 
committee. Please re-read the last paragraph of RFP Section 2.10.1.  The evaluation 
committee may change the weighing based on their review of the proposals and 
references.  Simply put, the City seeks the best combination of service and rates.  A 
proponent with poor references and difficulty meeting service standards will not be 
awarded a contract based on having the lowest rates.  Similarly, a proponent with an 
excellent service package and references will not be automatically awarded the contract 
if the City considers their rates to be prohibitively high. 
 
Q31: Would the City consider checking with other cities before moving ahead with its 
current priced-based selection process? 
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A31: Thank you for your suggestion. 
 
Q32: King County’s tipping fees are expected to increase on January 1, 2008.  Could the 
City please confirm that the new contract rates will reflect an adjustment for the new 
disposal rates? 
 
A32: King County has now formally approved their new 2008 rates, so please base your 
proposed rates on the 2008 $95.00/ton tipping fees, not the 2007 rates referenced in the 
RFP instructions. 
 
Q33: Page 7, Section 2.4.  The RFP states that the successful proponent will be expected 
to execute the proposed Contract as included in the RFP, and as amended by the City’s 
response to proponent questions.  Will the City entertain negotiation of other contract 
issues with the successful bidder, particularly if such issues are raised in conjunction with 
the proposer’s submittal?  The RFP seems to contemplate additional contract 
modifications (see Page 22, Section 3.1.G), but requires the proposer to certify that it will 
execute the contract as is (see Page 33, Form 5).  Can you please clarify? 
 
A33: Proponents should propose rates based on the base contract provided with the RFP 
in order to provide a consistent basis of comparison between proposals.  We realize that 
proponents would likely prefer various changes to the contract and the RFP anticipates 
that by providing for Section G of proponent proposals.  In Section G of your proposal 
please list your proposed changes to the contract, whether the change is a mandatory 
part of your proposal, and the estimated rate impact. 
 
The City specifically encourages proponents to propose alternative approaches to 
moderate rate increases while retaining the City’s commitment to environmental goals, 
such as using slightly older trucks, using CNG trucks, changing the length of contract, 
etc.  These alternative should be presented in addition to the rates proposed for the base 
contract. 

 
Q34: Contract Questions Scope of Work (Section 2.1, Page 5).  The contract provides 
that the Contractor will not knowingly or through gross negligence collect or dispose of 
hazardous waste.  However, it also requires the Contractor be held strictly liable for any 
such hazardous waste, if it causes the City to violate the City’s agreement with King 
County.  These appear to be  conflicting legal standards (knowledge/gross negligence vs. 
strict liability).  We recommend the City clarify this section of the contract to make clear 
that the Contractor’s liability for hazardous waste collected is limited to instances of 
knowing or grossly negligent collection. 
 
A34: Contract Section 2.1 will be changed to read: 
 

The Contractor shall collect, take title to and dispose of Garbage, Recyclables and 
Yard Debris according to the terms and conditions of this agreement; provided, that 
the Contractor  shall not knowingly or as a result of gross negligence collect or 
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dispose of Hazardous Waste or Special Waste as those terms are defined herein. 
 Because violation of this Section is cause for immediate termination of the City’s 
agreement with the County, the Contractor shall be held strictly liable and The 
Contractor shall indemnify the City for any City damages cause by violation of this 
Section.  Termination of the City’s agreement with the County shall not terminate the 
Contractor’s strict liability to the City and the County for violation of this Section. To 
the extent identifiable, customers shall remain responsible for any Hazardous Waste 
or Special Waste provided and inadvertently collected by Contractor. 

 
Q35: Inclement Weather and other Service Disruptions  (Section 2.1.7, Page 7).  This 
section deals with Contractor’s obligation to make up collections in the event of blocked 
roadways and other non-weather related events.  Would the City be willing to include 
labor disruptions in the list of events that apply under this section?  Such language would 
help to clarify the Contractor’s obligations to make up collections in the event of a labor 
disturbance. 
 
A35: No, labor disruption will not be considered a force majeure or service disruption 
event.  Contractors should be prepared to make other arrangements to ensure continued 
collection in the event of labor disruption. 
 
Q36: Requirement to Recycle and Compost (Section 2.1.11, page 18).  The contract 
requires that under no circumstances shall residuals exceed 5%.  Can the City envision 
any circumstances that might create an exception to this rule – or a process to consider 
situations that might arise during the course of the contract?  For example, if a specific 
market condition eliminates all reasonable markets for a commodity, would the City 
consider developing contract language that would allow the City and the Contractor to 
work together to develop an alternative? 
 
A36: Yes and yes.  The objective of the 5% standard is to ensure that standards don’t slip 
due to operational convenience and that all proponents are held to meeting the same 
processing standards, regardless of the type or ownership of the processing facility used 
to handle City materials.  Extraordinary market circumstances that require changes in 
material handling would certainly be addressed through negotiations if necessary. 
 
Q37: Container Ownership (Section 2.1.14.5, Page 12).  The contract provides that the 
City owns all Contractor-supplied carts at the end of the Contract.  Would the City 
consider making an exception for new carts which have been deployed during the term of 
the agreement and which have not yet been fully amortized by Contractor (i.e., the City 
would have a right to purchase those carts from Contractor at the end of the term, for net 
book value)? 
 
A37: This will not be considered for the City Service Area.  This may be possible for 
annexation areas added later in the term of the contract and would be one of the topics 
addressed through negotiations to add the area to this contract. 
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Q38: Annual Rate Adjustment (Section 3.3.1, Page 40).  Can the City please clarify 
when the first annual inflationary adjustment will be made under the contract?  At one 
point, the contract provides that this will begin March 1, 2010, but in other areas of the 
contract (including the example in Attachment C), it seems to indicate the first 
adjustment will occur in March of 2009.  If the first inflationary adjustment will not occur 
until 2010, what is the City’s rationale for the later dates? 
 
A38: The first rate adjustment will occur March 1, 2009, not 2010.  The contract 
language will be changed in that section and on the rate adjustment attachment. 
  
Q39: Other Modifications (Section 3.3.4, Page 41).  Since taxes and fees are billed as a 
separate line item by the Contractor (see Section 3.1.1), what is the City’s rationale for 
not allowing the Contractor to pass through all such tax increases after the effective date 
of the contract?  Would the City consider changing this provision to allow all such tax 
increases (which by their nature are beyond Contractor’s control) to be passed through? 
 
A39:  Line item taxes and fees (e.g. County, state solid waste taxes and hazardous waste 
fees) are pass-through items and as such, will reflect the Contractor’s actual costs.  
Other taxes and fees (e.g. truck licensing fees, fuel taxes) may vary over the term of the 
contract, but the City does not want to be required to consider rate changes for those 
various taxes and fees that it considers to be part of the cost of doing business.  If 
proponents consider this to be a major risk, they are free to propose alternative language 
as well as the rate savings available by accepting the alternative language. 

 
Q40: Prevailing Wage. In order to be competitive in this RFP process is the City of 
Shoreline willing to add a prevailing wage requirement to its contract language? 
 
A40: No. 
 
 

END OF ADDENDUM #1 



Residential Residential Residential Commercial Commercial Multi Family Multi Family Residential Commercial Residential Residential Commercial
2007 MSW Cust Recycle YW Cust MSW Recycle MSW Recycle Solid Waste Solid Waste Yard Debris Recycle Recycle
MONTH: Count Cust.Count Count Cust Count Cust. Count Cust. Count Cust. Count Tonnage Tonnage Tonnage Tonnage** Tonnage**

January 13,579      13,237 8,466 456 64 722 682 133 390 118

February 13,694      13,350 8,549 456 64 661 691 233 440 133

March 13,763      13,414 8,640 464 64 759 713 413 481 149

April 13,784      13,427 8,721 461 65 737 712 610 459 142

May 13,835      13,472 8,886 464 65 808 789 627 516 155

June 13,871      13,506 8,934 464 65 852 758 633 513 159

July

August

September

October

November

December

Residential Customer Count -  Monthend reports CNTCUR on white line in red.   ( There is a discrepancy between my & Cheri's numbers. )
Residential Customer Count -  Cheri on yellow line
Yard Waste Count - Cheri       ( I assume this is total of all Mfam, Com, & Res )
Commercial Recycle Cust Count - Query XSHORECOM
Multi Family Recycle Cust Count - Query XSHOREMFM
Residential Recycle Cust Count - Monthend spreadsheet Count Resi YW-REC

Shoreline



MONTH JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL MAY JUNE
TONNAGE 390 440 481 459 516 513

Newspaper 158.73 40.7% 175.56 39.9% 194.32 40.4% 204.26 44.5% 266.26 51.6% 253.42 49.4%
Mix Paper 83.85 21.5% 91.08 20.7% 101.49 21.1% 71.60 15.6% 69.14 13.4% 53.87 10.5%
OCC 50.31 12.9% 55.00 12.5% 47.62 9.9% 49.11 10.7% 42.83 8.3% 56.43 11.0%
Telephone 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Aluminum 4.29 1.1% 4.84 1.1% 5.29 1.1% 5.05 1.1% 5.16 1.0% 5.64 1.1%
Glass 49.92 12.8% 63.36 14.4% 73.11 15.2% 68.39 14.9% 72.76 14.1% 82.59 16.1%
PET 3.51 0.9% 3.96 0.9% 5.29 1.1% 6.43 1.4% 6.71 1.3% 6.67 1.3%
HDPE Natl 2.34 0.6% 2.64 0.6% 3.37 0.7% 3.21 0.7% 3.10 0.6% 2.57 0.5%
HDPE Col 2.34 0.6% 2.64 0.6% 3.37 0.7% 3.67 0.8% 3.61 0.7% 3.08 0.6%
#3 - 7 2.73 0.7% 3.08 0.7% 2.89 0.6% 2.75 0.6% 3.10 0.6% 3.08 0.6%
Scrap Metal 3.12 0.8% 3.52 0.8% 3.85 0.8% 4.59 1.0% 4.13 0.8% 4.10 0.8%
Plastic wrap 0.2% 0.2% 0.2% 0.2% 0.1% 0.2%
Tin Cans 7.80 2.0% 9.68 2.2% 9.62 2.0% 8.72 1.9% 8.77 1.7% 8.72 1.7%
Residue 21.45 5.5% 23.32 5.3% 29.82 6.2% 30.29 6.6% 30.44 5.9% 31.81 6.2%

MONTH JULY AUGUST SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER
TONNAGE 0 0 0 0 0 0

Newspaper 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Mix Paper 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
OCC 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Telephone 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Aluminum 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Glass 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
PET 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
HDPE Natl 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
HDPE Col 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
#3 - 7 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Scrap Metal 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Plastic wrap
Tin Cans 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Residue 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2007 SHORELINE SUMMARY AND RESIDENTIAL RECYCLING PERCENTAGES



MONTH JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL MAY JUNE
TONNAGE 118 133 149 142 155 159

Mix Paper 55.46 47.0% 63.18 47.5% 70.63 47.4% 71.71 50.5% 73.94 47.7% 75.84 47.7%
OCC 55.46 47.0% 63.57 47.8% 71.22 47.8% 62.76 44.2% 73.47 47.4% 75.37 47.4%
Residue 5.90 5.0% 6.38 4.8% 7.30 4.9% 7.53 5.3% 7.60 4.9% 7.79 4.9%

MONTH JULY AUGUST SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER
TONNAGE 0 0 0 0 0 0

Mix Paper 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
OCC 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Residue 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2007 SHORELINE  SUMMARY AND COMMERCIAL RECYCLING PERCENTAGES



Residential Solid Waste and Recyclable Collection Rates: 
Rate Category Rate Charge Frequency

10 Gallon Mini Can 9.47$                      Monthly 
20 Gallon Mini Can 10.88$                    Monthly 
One 32 Gallon Can 12.59$                    Monthly 
Two 32 Gallon Cans 17.39$                    Monthly 
Three 32 Gallon Cans 22.17$                    Monthly 
Four 32 Gallon Cans 26.98$                    Monthly 
Five 32 Gallon Cans 31.76$                    Monthly 
32 Gallon Toter 13.72$                    Monthly 
32 Gallon Toter Once a month 5.04$                      Monthly 
60 Gallon Toter 18.51$                    Monthly 
90 Gallon Toter 23.30$                    Monthly 
1 Can Per Month 8.60$                      Monthly 
Extra Unit 3.14$                      Each

Residential Yard Waste Collection Rates: 
Service Frequency:  Bi-Weekly (March - October)  Monthly: (November - February) 

Rate Category Rate           (Mar-
Oct)

Rate           (Nov-
Feb)

90 Gallon Toter 8.60$                      3.98$                      
Extra Unit 1.40$                      1.40$                      

Commercial Solid Waste Collection Rates: 

2 3 4 5
32 Gallon Toter 13.72$                    27.42$                    41.15$       54.86$        68.57$        5.41$          
60 Gallon Toter 18.51$                    37.00$                    55.52$       74.02$        92.52$        6.50$          
90 Gallon Toter 23.30$                    46.59$                    69.88$       93.18$        116.46$      7.61$          
1 Cubic Yard 57.45$                    109.77$                  162.10$     214.41$      266.71$      16.56$        
1.25 Cubic Yards 68.58$                    131.51$                  194.44$     257.36$      320.28$      18.99$        
1.5 Cubic Yards 79.69$                    152.92$                  226.15$     299.36$      372.59$      21.36$        
2 Cubic Yards 101.94$                  196.08$                  290.18$     384.31$      478.40$      26.19$        
3 Cubic Yards 145.73$                  281.76$                  417.81$     553.82$      689.87$      35.88$        
4 Cubic Yards 183.48$                  355.90$                  528.28$     700.68$      873.08$      44.26$        
6 Cubic Yards 243.81$                  470.94$                  698.07$     925.20$      1,152.32$   56.90$        
8 Cubic Yards 310.74$                  602.01$                  893.29$     1,184.54$   1,475.80$   71.70$        
2 Cubic Yard Compactor 245.42$                  
3 Cubic Yard Compactor 405.37$                  810.72$                  1,216.10$  1,621.47$   2,026.84$   98.02$        
4 Cubic Yard Compactor 461.28$                  
6 Cubic Yard Compactor 568.47$                  
Extra Yardage 13.27$                    
Extra Can, Box, Bag 3.14$                      

* Same Residential rate for same container size.

Appendix G 

Rates and Charges 
Rates Effective January 1, 2007 through December 31, 2007

Solid Waste Container Size Standard Service 
Rate*

Extra Collection - Pickups per Week            Extra 
Service On-

Call



Commercial Recyclable Materials Collection Rates: 

2 3 4 5
32 Gallon Toter 5.31$                      9.15$                      18.31$       27.46$        36.63$        45.78$        4.36$          
60 Gallon Toter 10.62$                    18.30$                    36.61$       54.91$        73.21$        91.50$        6.46$          
90 Gallon Toter 15.94$                    27.45$                    54.92$       82.38$        109.84$      137.29$      8.57$          
1 Cubic Yard 19.92$                    36.46$                    72.93$       109.37$      145.83$      182.31$      12.89$        
1.25 Cubic Yards 24.90$                    45.57$                    91.14$       136.73$      182.30$      227.87$      15.00$        
1.5 Cubic Yards 26.43$                    48.39$                    96.79$       145.17$      193.58$      241.96$      15.66$        
2 Cubic Yards 33.23$                    60.41$                    120.85$     181.28$      241.69$      302.13$      18.42$        
3 Cubic Yards 46.12$                    84.63$                    169.25$     253.88$      338.52$      423.15$      24.01$        
4 Cubic Yards 54.76$                    100.78$                  201.56$     302.34$      403.13$      503.90$      27.75$        
6 Cubic Yards 66.66$                    119.87$                  239.76$     359.63$      479.49$      599.37$      32.14$        
8 Cubic Yards 81.53$                    147.83$                  295.68$     443.52$      591.36$      739.19$      38.59$        

Commercial Yard Waste Collection Rates: 
Rate Category Rate             (Mar-

Oct)
Rate           (Nov-

Feb)
1 Cubic Yard 45.12$                    20.83$                    
2 Cubic Yard 90.21$                    41.63$                    
90 Gallon Toter 8.60$                      3.98$                      

Drop Box Rates (1): 
Container Size Rental Rate Pickup Rate 

10 Cubic Yards 26.19$                    81.71$                    
15 Cubic Yards 32.74$                    81.71$                    
20 Cubic Yards 32.74$                    81.71$                    
25 Cubic Yards 36.68$                    81.71$                    
30 Cubic Yards 40.62$                    81.71$                    
40 Cubic Yards 50.01$                    81.71$                    

Compactor Rates (Customer Furnished) (1): 
Container Size Pickup Rate

10 Cubic Yards 81.71$                    
15 Cubic Yards 81.71$                    
20 Cubic Yards 81.71$                    
25 Cubic Yards 81.71$                    
30 Cubic Yards 81.71$                    
35 Cubic Yards 81.71$                    
40 Cubic Yards 81.71$                    

(1) Drop box and compactor rates do not include disposal fees and City taxes on those corresponding
     disposal fees. 

Rates for Special Services / Conditions: 

Service / Condition Monthly Rate 
(Residential)

Monthly Rate 
(Commercial) 

Carry Outs (Over 5 to 25 feet) 0.56$                      0.56$                      
Each Additional 25 Feet 0.56$                      0.56$                      

Stairs and Steps (For Each Step) 0.10$                      0.10$                      
Overhead Obstructions (Less Than 8 

Feet From Ground) 1.11$                      1.11$                      
Sunken or Elevated Cans / Units    

Cans or Units Under or Above 
Ground  Over 4 Feet But Not 

Involving Steps or Stair 1.11$                      1.11$                      
Drive-ins (Only One Can)  Private 
Road or Driveways Over 125 Feet 3.36$                      3.36$                      

Extra 
Service On-

Call 

Recyclable Materials Container 
Size Every Other Week Weekly Collection Extra Collection - Pickups per Week



Return Trip (Per Unit) 1.63$                      3.19$                      
Gate Charge (Commercial Only, per 

container) 7.72$                      
Roll Out (Commercial Only, per 

container) 5.62$                      
Compactor disconnect/reconnect fee 

(per month) 14.81$                    
Container Lock Deposit 10.86$                    
Curbside Recycle Only 6.09$                      

Yard Debris Only (Mar-Oct) 9.88$                      
Yard Debris Only (Nov-Feb) 5.26$                      

Yard Debris Cust. Provided 32 
Gallon (Mar-Oct) 2.87$                      

Yard Debris Cust. Provided 32 
Gallon (Nov-Feb) 1.99$                      

Yard Debris WM Provided 64 Gallon 
(Mar-Oct) 6.85$                      

Yard Debris WM Provided 64 Gallon 
(Nov-Feb) 3.16$                      

Temporary Roll Off and Commercial Rates: 
WM charge WUTC tariff rates for temporary services.  Temporary accounts are defined as service for less than 90 days. 
This is generally "one time" remodel or construction type customers. 

Bulky items pick-up 39.18$                    per item 

White goods pick-up 67.16$                    per item 



City of Shoreline Facilities

ACCOUNT NAME ADDRESS CITY/STATE/WA QTY SERVICE LEVEL

SHORELINE POLICE NEIGHBOR CTR 624 NW RICHMOND BCH RD SHORELINE WA 98177-3122 1 1-32 GAL CAN MSW
1 64 GAL CART PAPER

WESTSIDE NEIGHBORHOOD CENTER 624 NW RICHMOND BCH RD SHORELINE WA 98133 1 32 GAL CAN RCY 1X WK

CITY OF SHORELINE POOL 19030 1ST AVE NE SHORELINE WA 98155-2144 1 1-1.5 YD 1X PER WEEK
2 96 GAL CART MULTIFAMIL

CITY OF SHORELINE POLICE DEPT 1206 N 185TH ST SHORELINE WA 98133-4020 1 1-2 YD 1X PER WEEK
1 2 YD RCY 1X WK

RICHMOND HIGHLANDS COMM CENTER 16554 FREMONT AVE N SHORELINE WA 98133-5239 1 1-3 YD 1X PER WEEK
1 96 GAL CART PAPER

EASTSIDE NEIGHBORHOOD CENTER 521 NE 165TH ST SHORELINE WA 98155 1 1-32 GAL CAN MSW
1 64 GAL CART PAPER

CITY OF SHORELINE  ANNEX BLDG 1110 N 175TH ST SHORELINE WA 98133-4912 1 6 YD RCY 1X WK
1 8 YD GARBAGE  1X WK

CITY OF SHORELINE HAMLIN PARK 16000 NE 15TH ST SHORELINE WA 98155
     GARBAGE/ROLL OFF 1 30 YD ROLLOFF 2X WK
     YARDWASTE/ROLL OFF 1 20 YD RECYCLE  ON-CALL
     CURBSIDE RECYCLE TOTER 1 96 GAL CART PAPER 1X WK
































































































































